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May 12, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 4:47, and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04 as extended
by Executive Orders 2020-05 and 2020-08, Governor Sununu has authorized the Department of
Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter Into a Retroactive, Sole
Source contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VC#177511-P001). Keene, NH in
the amount of $42,000 for decompression of the population in homeless shelters to align
operations with Centers for Disease Control recommendations, with the option to renew for up to
one (1) additional year, effective retroactive to April 11, 2020 upon Governor approval through
July 10. 2020.100% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limKation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justrfted.

05-95-95-950010-56760000 Health and Social Services, Department of Health and Human
Services, HHS: Office of the Commissioner, Office of Business Operations

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 103-502664 Contracts for Oper Svc 95010998 $42,000

2021 103-502664 Contracts for Oper Svc 95010998 $0

Total $42,000

EXPLANATION

This item Is Retroactive and Sole Source because the Department, in the interest of the
public's health and safety, identified vendors with capacity to quickly respond to the COVtD-19
pandemic.

The purpose of this contract is to ensure shelters for individuals who are experiencing
homelessness have the ability to decrease the numbers served in the shelter and provide
alternative locations in order to meet current Centers for Disease Control recommendations

relative to COVlD-19 and social distancing.

The Department cannot determine how many individuals experiencing homelessness will
be served from April 11, 2020 through July 10, 2020.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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The Contractor will use funding to provide alternative shelter placement to individuals in
order that social distancing can be accomplished regardless of where the individuals are receiving
homeless shelter services.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions of the attached
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up one (1) additional year,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval.

Area served: Keene

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette ULori

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for dtisena to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Decompression Services for Homeless - C0VID19 (SS-2020-OCOM-10-DECOM-04)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

63 Community Way
Keene,NH 03431

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)352-7512 Ext
4211

(jmanning@scshelps.org)

1.6 Account Number

05-95-95-950010-

56760000-103-502664-

95010998

1.7 Completion Date

July 10,2020

1.8- Price Limitation

$42,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. While, Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contactor Signature

Date:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 State Agency Signature

5Date

1.14 Name and TitleofState Agency Signatory

ChfisVine L. Sa,rrVan\«,Uo,^l'n;c-tor JjeHS
1.15 Approval by the N!K*J3^artmentoi

By:

tioh. Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: On: 5/12/20

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date;
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slalc of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perfonn, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate ofNew Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hcrcundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the ScrN'ices prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or,otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shajl the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Ser\'ices under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the.
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Not\\'ithstanding any proNnsion in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hcreunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS ■

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 in connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employmejit opportunity laws, in addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the puipose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Sers'ices, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless oihervvisc authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Ser\'ices to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall-constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
ofDefault"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Sendees satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event ofDefault, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event ofDefault is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, efTective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event ofDefault

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Slate to enforce any provisiofis hereof affer
any Event ofDefault shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No e.xpress failure to enforce any Event ofDefault shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fiffeen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report'*) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to tliose of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
perfonnance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 AM data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon,demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

1!. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the Stale at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty, percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity inlere.sls, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services, shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice ajid consent of the State.
The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
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Contracior, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
tetinination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in forcej the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims

of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss covcmgc form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 Tlic policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificatc(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under thi.s Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the e.vpjration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of Insurance and any
renewals thercofshall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shrill maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified-in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be-
attached and are incorporated herein by rcferetice. The Stale
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instalment in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only af^er approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parlies to e.xpress their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19.-C0NFLICnTNG' TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to.
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HE.ADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying,
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions ofthis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original,- constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Page 4 of 4
Contractor Initials^^^

Dale g7r/^^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Decompression Services for Homeless - COVID19

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on April
11. 2020 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1) additional year
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 9, Termination, is amended by adding Subparagraph 9.3, as follows:

9.3. In the event that services in the contract are no longer needed, due to
the resolution of the COVID 19 Pandemic, the contract- shall be

%  terminated immediately upon written notification of the State to the
Contractor. .

1.4. Paragraph 12, Assignmerit/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall hsve written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-2020-OCOM-10-DEC0M-04 Exhibit A - Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Decompression Services - COVID 19

exhibit b

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure the safety of the population served, during the
C0VID19 Pandemic, who are served through contracts with the State of New
Hampshire relative to:

1.1.1. Shelter Essential Services:

1.1.2. Emergency Shelter services;

1.1.3., Homeless Intervention Services; and/or

1.1 A. Coordinated Entry Services.

1.2. The Contractor shall decompress the population in homeless shelters in order
to align operations with Centers for Disease Control (CDC) recorfimendations
relative to social distancing, in order to provide services in a safe manner that
is in cooperation and accordance with any existing agreement with the State of
New Hampshire.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure any guests participating in decompression
services are:

1.3.1. Identified as guests of the Southwestern Community Services
Program. ,

1.3.2. Provided with all services, rights and supports available through
services provided at the Southwestern Community Services
Program.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure any locations utilized as alternate locations for
decompression purposes comply with all local codes.

$S-2020-OCOM-10-DECOM-04 Exhibit B Scope of Services Contractor Inltia
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Decompression Services for Homeless -C0VID19

EXHIBIT C

Pavment Terms

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block 1.8
Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit B,
Scope of Services

2. Payment shall be on a' cost reimbursement basis of $14,000 per month.

3. ^ The Contractor shall submit monthly Invoices that specify the number of individuals
served during the previous month.

4. In lieu of hard copies, all Department-provided invoices may be assigned an electronic
signature and emailed to Beth.Kelly@dhhs.nh.gov .

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form Number P-37 of
this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date, specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion
Date.

7. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit 8, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole
or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes limited
to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by
written agreement of both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council, If needed and justified.

12. Audits

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Exhibii C Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Decompression Services for Homeless - C0VID19

EXHIBIT C

12.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of

the following conditions exist;

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal

funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during
the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the

requirements of NH RSA 7:28, !ll-b, pertaining to charitable

organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12.1.3. Condition C the Contractor is. a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an

annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the

Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year,

conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F

of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual

financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close

of the Contractor's fiscal year.

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
• understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable

for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all

payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which

have been disallowed because, of such an exception.

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. Exhibit C Contractor InitialsQm
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
'1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
tennination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1.. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution;

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug.counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the ternis of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

i .5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant,
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

'  Exhibit 0 - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Inllial»'y7^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
.  subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; of . '

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2. 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection yvith the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.
"I

" Vendor Name:

S'JilzoiM
Date ■ Name: A ^

Title:

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress.

•  an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code, Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than S10.000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Na

Tt

Date

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARIVIENT. SUSPENSION
-AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circurhstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction,' "debarred," "suspended," "Ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction l3e entered into. It shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in.this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineliglbiiity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Vendor tnitia
And other Responsibility Matters W/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded frorh covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

'11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b).
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. vyhere the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name;

Date N6me: Aj/fiWA/rAJ ̂
itie:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or.in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; •

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86),'which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal. Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of. the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency, makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency.or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ^

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor, agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

l4>

■^9^® N^e: ^ 6
T/e: ci
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the. law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103^227, Part 0, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

Date f^me:<7.»>^^
ite:

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Vendor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.'501.

, e. "Data Aaareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f- "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meanirig as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor initial^
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Exhibit!

I. "Reouired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n., "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection^of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and arhendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Inforrhation" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: '
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party;*and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Inltia'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. ,

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have ah impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification:

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivip§>PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initi
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Exhibit)

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for

,  amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI iri accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection With the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of ariy changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

3- Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.^

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Inili
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Exhibit I

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I dr the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sufv'va'- Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.,

Department of Health and Human Services

T, Namaof the ContractorState

d
Signature of Authorlre>I Represen

CWrishne L.SxunWtfWhi
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date* »

re of Authorized Representative

g Ma/ POArsJAJ/Ai 6
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 ExNbIt I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARFNCY
ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANT

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
date related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Awrard title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and.

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required date by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply vwth all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Ae:^

C.t'O

ExrilDtt J - Certlflcalion Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initia
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compilance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ^^^33 /3B I

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a)i 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

■CU/DHHS/110713

Exfilbli J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incidenf shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department

.  of Commerce.

3. Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing coMacted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includies, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. Incident means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update 10/09^8 Exhibit K Contractor initial
DHHS Information

Security Requirements x ///♦
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI PFI
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R.. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F R §
160.103. • • ■

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured , by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Ust update 1(V09/18 ■ Exhibit K Contractor Intl^
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.'

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract. .

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Corhputer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

I

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. ^

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may. not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor tnitial
DHHS information

Security Requirements f —/ /_
Page 3 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote U.ser Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities, are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ait electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITEGH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 ExhibllK Contractor Initials.
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B; Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure'deletion and media
sanitization, or othenwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Corrimerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to tlie Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1.. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
, confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery

of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contracforlnitlafe
DHHS Information

Security Reqiiiremeiits
Page 6 of 9 Date lo



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Coritractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with alt applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as'^part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department systemfs). Agreements will be
completed and'signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written • consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations .{45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules {45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data arid to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. .

b. ^safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by-'email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contraclorlnitials
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.
f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually

identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases;
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

I.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,

•and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further, handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and corivene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and
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Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurltyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrciar)' of Sialc of «hc Sialc of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thai SOUTH WESTERN.

COMMUNCn' SERVICES, INC. is o New Hampshire Konpjpni Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrctar>' of State's pOlcc have been

received and is in good suinding as far as this oITicc is concerned.

Business 10; 65514

Certificate Number: 0004822550
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOE,

I hereto set my-harid arid cause lo.be alTixcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd dav of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Sccreiaiyof State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

'■ Eliane M. Amer ; . hereby certify that;(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
February 18 . 201^ , at which a quomm of the Directors/shareholders were present and votinq

(Date) . . '

VOTED: That —John A. Manning (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and at!
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vole.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amendecf or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are-any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation inycontracts with the St^'of New Hampshire
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. // ^
Dated: Mav1.2Q2Q Z/ ] > UQVWA

SigFrature of Elected Offic^
Name:Eiaine M. Amer
Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

4/15/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such ondor8cment(8).

PRODUCER

Clark - Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606

Keene NH 03431

CONTACT
NAME:

F..V 603-352-2121 noL 603-357-8491

ADMFss: csr24admin®clark-mortenson.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC t

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Company 0

INSURED SOUTHWESTERNCOM

Southwestern Comm Services Inc

PC Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B Maine Employer Mutual Insurance Co.

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1092272766 REVISION NUMBER:

INSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
TOBUISTJBRI

TYPE OF INSURANCE
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

LIMITS'NSD WVD POLICY NUMBER IMMIOOrrYYY) <MM/DDiYYYYI

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PHPK20CX3692 6/30/2019 SOO/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE

BamaGE to Rei-ITED
PREMISES lEa occurfencel

MED EXP (Any ooa p<f»on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY HlOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa accioenil

$1,000,000

S 100.000

$5,000

$ 1,000,000

$2,000,000

$2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2000704 S/30/2019 6/30/2020

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

P
BODILY INJURY (Per parson)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per ecclOent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE•
(Per acclOertl)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHU868187e 6730/2019 6730/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE. $ 2,000,000

AGGREGATE ' $ 2,000.000

RETENTIONS iqqoq

OTH-
_ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNEWEXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Martdatory In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS betow

3102800766
V I reR
^ I STATUTE

If n

0N/A
E.L EACH ACCIDENT $500,000

E.L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $500,000

Professional Llabililly PHPK2000692 6730/2019 6/30/2020 $1,000,000 per
$2,000,000 gerwral

occurrence

aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional RamarVs Schedule, may be attached if more Space is required)

Workers Compensation Statutory coverage provided for the State of NH
All Executive Officers are included in the Workers Compensation coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State Of NH, DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN"
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Vision Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS seeks to create and support a climate within

the communities of southwestern New Hampshire

wherein poverty is never accepted as a chronic or
permanent condition of any person's life.



Mission Statement
i
r-

Southwestern Community Services

SCS strives to empower low income people and

families. With dignity and respect, SCS will provide

direct assistance, reduce stressors and advocate for such

persons and families as they lift themselves toward
self-sufficiency.

In partnership and close collaboration with local
communities, SCS will provide leadership and support

to develop resources, programs and services to further
aid this population.
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Leone, „
McDonnell
& Roberts

ASSfXiunoN"

To the Board of Directors of ci-rtified public Aa:ou^T^Y^^

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. wolfeboro • northcomv
,, DOVER • CONCORDKeene, New Hampshire s'i'rathaiM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated Statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America:^ this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the .United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the. appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the, summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which It has been

derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit f^equirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements'. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to- the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal -
control over financial , reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestem Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 5, 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPAMIFS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

' Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

882.187
1.245.826

51,722
112,000

45.547

2.337.282

19,188.791
554.976
220.291

19,964.058

7.938.217

12.025.841

198.728

59.102

849.334

62.996

384

1,170,544

1,086.895
1,069.922

35.019
112,000
45.547

2.339.383

14,438,178

549,305
39.617

15,027,100

4.880.9S2

10.146.148

88;706
.188,523
517,853
51,996

384

847,462

$  15.533.667 $ 13.332,993

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
. Accnjed expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities
Refundable advances

Interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

391,613

119,620

233,900
138,740

180,994

49,547
227.221

1,341,635

9.086.445

10,428,080

4,922,671
182,916

5,105,587

$  15,533.667

124,085
206,178

250,692

135,573
193,931

216.438

1,126,897

8,273,983

9,400,880

3,787,422
144,691

3,932,113

$  13,332,993

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUMtTY SERVICFS. INH. AND RELATED nOMPANIFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental Income

Developer fee Income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest Income

Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Home eneigy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services
Other programs

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

10,672,702

2,485,405
995,380

326,558

70,893

7,153

388,849
120,697
241.499

15,309,136

With Donor

Restrictions

87,608

15.396.744

5,238,483
2,659,830

1,994,872

2,319,865
721,370
894,986

13,829,406

15,709,812

(313,068)

(6,481)

18,116

(301,433)

3,787,422

1.436,682

125,833

125,833

(87,608)

38.225

38,225

38,225

144,691

2019

Total

10,672,702
2,485,405
995,380

452,391
70,893

7,153

388,849
120,697
241,499

15,434,969

15.434.969

. 5,238,483

2,659,830
1,994,872
2,319,865

721,370
894,986

13,829,406

1,880,406

15,709:812

(274.843)

(6,481)'

18,116

(263,208)

3,932.113

1,436,682

2018

Total

$ 11,055,093
1,888,188

801,642
50.000
509,229

105,288
8,959

75,971
100.772
161.852

14,736.992

14.736.992

4,847,201
2,530,152
2,172,388
2,048,214
728,119
945.391

13.271.465

1,749.700

15,021.165

(284,173)

(4,583)

im

(288,944)

3,397,772

823.285

$ 4,922,671 $ 182.916 $ 5,105,587 $ 3,932.113

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

.  FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to
net cash from operating activities;

$  (263,208) $ (288.944)

Depreciation and amortization 580,115 467,929

Loss on sale of property '  6,481 4,583

(Gain) loss on investment In limited partnerships (18.116) 188-

Forgiveness of debt (388,849) (75,971)
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (185,904) 265,199

Prepaid expenses 5,509 (3,439)
Interest receivable - (4.480)
Due from related parties 44,240 66,149

Security deposits 5,151 (2,623)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

(53,220)Accounts payable 145,829

Accrued expenses (106,905) (38,863)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (16,792) 9,657

Other currerit liabilities 3,167 (13,125)
Refundable advances (12,937) (44,414)
Interest payable 49,547 -

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (152,672) 288,626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase) decrease in escrow funds (33,568) 5,846

Proceeds from sale of property 215,000 -

Purchase of property. (139,717) (142,791)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 41,715 (136,945)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term debt 40,048 76,143

Repayment of long term debt (160,029) , (112,612)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (119,981) (36,469)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (230,938) 115,212

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,086,895 947,175

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 26,230 24,508

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  882,187 $  1,086,895

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:'
Prepaid expenses .
Land and buildings
Furniture and fixtures J

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets.from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related parties
Long term debt

•  Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

Partners' capital previously recorded as investment in related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

$  203,408 $ 142.467

$  (22,212)
(2,373,335)
(168,237)
(297,913)
f16.151)

(12,328)
(894,504)
(96,338)

(164.110)
(11,467)

$ (2,877,848) $ (1.176,747)

$$  121,699 10,810
20,347

85,181
1,332.075

$  1,559.302

$  1,344,776

91,906

$  1,436.682

11,199

304.073

$ 326.082

$ 877,173

(53.888)

s 823,285

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMMUNrTY SERVlCgS INC. AND RgLATgP CQMPAWlgS

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

Psyrol ^
Payroll taxes
Emptoyaa benefits
Retirement

Advertising
Bank charges
Bad debt e]q>ense
Computer cost
Contractual

Depredadon
OuesTreglstration
Oupllcating
insurartce

Interest

Meeting and conference
MEsceBaneous ergMXise
MIsceSaneous taxes

Equ^ment purchases
Office expertse
Postage
Professional fees

Staff development and training
SutrscripUons
Telephone
Travel

veMde

Rent

Spece costs
Direct cSertf assistance
In-ldnd er^enses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
MANAGEMEfTT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

Aflocstlofi of management and gerteral e?;>er»3es

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Education Economic Management

2019Home Energy and Hcmeiass Housing Development Other TotsI and

Proorams Ntrtrltlnn Proorams Services Services Proorams Pfooram Gerreral Total

$  432.968 S  1.224,988 S  377,595 $  775.425 S  414,730 -5 432.826 $ 3.658,530 S  753,068 $ 4.411.598

33,521 97,919 29,527 59.738 33.519 34.195 288.419 56.304 348.723

106.054 415.890 142.654 289.985' 97.771 180.294 1232.643 111.111 1243.759

29.200 70.406 18.908 81.936 27.831 16.181 224.462 71.547 296.009

500 1.912 4,013 818 9.487 10.730 • 16.730
. _ 4.444 . 1 4.445 7229 11.774

10 . 90 . . 100 -  • 100

24,540 4.759 3.027 14.920 750 48.002 116246 164.848

629.045 32.930 230.984 38.696 2.719 116.585 1,050.959 39.743 1.090.702

28.300 108.291 281.950 - 14207 432,748 147.367 580.115

5.277 . 488 868 1.312 •7.945 11,879 19.824

8.852 . . . '  8.852 4,155 13.007

8.714 14.798 23,590 60.672 14.130 7.164 127.068 33292 160.960

7.775 8,022 21.956 . 1.610 39263 164.045 203.408

8.673 813 2.567 8.104 565 22.569 43291 24.957 68248

181 1.695 637 34.793 3,651 2.931 43.688 19278 63.166
. . 34.900 . . 34.900 389 35289

1.292 15^74 . 7.287 . - 23.853 1.180 25.033

24.820 8.499 6.695 11.475 6,458 607 58.754 11.656 70.410

97 268 138 S3 214 . 770 24238 25.008

4.300 1.301 36.095 . 41.696 90.968 132.664

2.128 1.580 1.678 72 1.904 •  21.877 29,239 10.590 39.829

. . . 655 354 . 1.009 399 1.408

2.087 2.358 18.479 17.817 2.336 1.589 44.684 52.308 96.972

7.951 18.258 15.412 5.183 29.531 608 74,941 4255 79.796

2;300 5^25 1.088 37.795 44.426 8.568 99.402 13.436 112.838
. 24.800 . ISO . . 24.950 - 24.950
. 194.940 332.351 512.392 1.000 378 1.041.065 106.866 1.147,931

3.947.152 . 214.436 688.284 .10,674 23.619 21.049 4.865214 • 4285214
. 241.499 . .

. 241.499 - 241.499

5.238,483 2.659.830 1.994.872 2.319.665 721.370 694.986 13.829.406 1.880.406 15.709.812

712.284 361.661 271.246 315.438 98.066 121.693 1260.406" (1.880.406)
•

S S.950.767 $ 3.021.491 $ 2.268.118 i 2.635.301 S  819.456 S  1.016.679 S 15.709212 $ $ 15.709212

See Notes to Consolidated Flnar>dal Statements
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SQUTHWESTERfl COMMUNITY SFRVICES. IWC.

COKSOUDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 201B

Education Economic Uanagament

Home Energy and Homelass Housing Developmsnt Other Total and

Proorami Nutrition Proorams Services Servlees Proorams Prooram and General

PayreB $  398.452 S  1306.631 S  435.538 $  771.028 i  405.169 S  439358 S 3.658.198 S  774.486

Psyroltaxes 31S99 99.682 X153 58.803 30.418 38.918 289.771 60313

Employee benefits 122.762 453304 148.394 278.393 87.744 187320 1375.517 54390

Retirement 24.960 69.878 21.031 . '64344 19380 17.448 216.821 73.148

Adverttsino • 142 1397 4.166 2.114 16.172 24,491
9.070Bsnkcherges 15' - 120 3.634 • 3.989

Computer cost - 9.185 4300 14.144 14398 3300 45.427 62.052

Contractual 518.340 52.463 242.935 20.362 2.718 109.718 948.538 14.921

Depredation - 28300 108391 167340 16.131 320362 147387

Dues/registration - 6.030 . 343 988 097 8364 10,175

DupScatlno 1.584 6.148 .  - - • 9.732 4.321

Insurance 5.909 13.361 23,653 52.287 14.610 6348 116.088 .. 38.380

Interest . 8.656 7,759 6.997 • 2354 25.068 116.501

Meetino and conference 3.961 58 9393 7.177 600 19305 40.394 35.924

MisceBaneous cqiersa 909 971 2,303 18.696 '  4.442 18.560 45.881 13.162

MisceBaneous taxes - . • 26.361 • 26.381 986

Equipment purchases 4.670 24.320 80 12.348 • • 41.416 2305

Office expense 34.413 12.613 8.440 14.508 12.042 4,076 68.090 20.402

Postage 132 274 182 31 348 SO 1.017 22.918

Professional fees' 4.890- • 1375 15379 - - 22.844 83.788

Stsfl development and irdr4ig 1.430 23,724 2.624 8387 5.875 28.044 80.784 2.043

Subscrtptlora - - 28 87 • 115 1329

Telephone 2.086 15397 10.681 14.569 2.435 3339 57307 58376

Travel 5.335 20,013 20.312 5.195 29.509 2.000 82364 3309

Vdilde 2.140 2310 712 31.626 45300 9.201 91389 10.981

Rent • 25301 - - 25301 -

Space costs 146 140313 256.849 438.344 1,009 838.583 128,966

Direct diem esslstsnoe 3,683,466 145.220 823.936 14.447 50.531 23,843 4.741.445 -

In^dnd ejqtenses . 161.652 . . - 161.852 •

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 4347.201 2.530.152 2.172388 2348314 728.119 045391 13371.485 1.749.700

ABocatlon of managemetS and general eiperses 639.051 ' 333373 288.407 270,035 95.095 124.639 1.749.700 f1 740.7001

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES % 5,466352 8 2.683.725 5 2.458.795 S ' 2318349 S  824.114 t  1.070.030 S 15.021.165 t

2018

Total

4,432.662

350.684

1.33O.107
289,069
24.491

13.048

107.479
961.457

467.929
18.539
14,053

154,448
142.467

76.318
59.003

27.387
43.723

106.492
23.935

106.410
72.727

1.444

113.883

85.873

102.570
25.201

965.529
4.741.445
161.852

15.021.165

$ 15,021.165

Sm Notas to ConsoDdatad Fbisndal Statamants
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SOUTHWESTERN COIVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance, in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Managernent Corporation, SCS. Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from
governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestern Corrimunity
Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting interest in their governing board. All significant intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated

financial statements.

■  SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing, Inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
^  SCS Housing Development, Inc.
"  Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
■  Jaffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jeffrey) - Sold 2/1/19
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene
. East Side)

■ Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)
Consolidation began 8/16/17

■  Swanzey Township Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Consolidation began 6/30/18

■  Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19

9



Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed' restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the'discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

the financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute, a presentation in coriformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information ' should. be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it Is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is
recognized as revenue.

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received. creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are .
recognized at fair value when received.
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Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could, differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off,4hrough a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for, charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organization has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that is expected to be collected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Cohcentrations

The Organization is. operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules'
and regulations . of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional,
administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.
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Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government.' These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31. 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,929, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue Recognitton
Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met.are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction is fulfilled in the.same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exerppt function Income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryfon^/ards totaling $1,012)604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future
taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss carryfprwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2022.
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The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation allowance (212.768) (137.408)

Deferred tax asset $ - $ -

Drewsville, Jeffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in the partners'
federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax retums with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments '

FASB ASC Topic No!. 820-10,, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows: '

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reportirig date, and fair vaiue can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations vyhere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandability, of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature, ;.,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31, 2020.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
the interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2019 and 2018.
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

j  2019 2018
1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96 .
Main Street). $ 145.647 $ 154,832

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable, housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is .
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 31,589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,
Ashuelot). 20,672 31,143

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to' New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 "244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until
project is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly -
installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 146,515 162,223
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2019 2018

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured .
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene Office). 2,212,288 2,247,266

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, in '
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due.The remaining'
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The rertiaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). . . 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019 . ,
and 2018, respectively. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Street). 94,733 100,254
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2019 2018

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low Income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 125,000 150,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Charlestown Road). 75,000 90,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by real estate of the'
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794.189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in ,
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance). 344.536 363,677

6.99% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 1,293 8,741

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 19,287 ' 24,564
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2019 2018
Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
principal and accrued interest at 1 % were deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The note was
secured by land and buildings. The balance
included cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31, 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was secured by
land and buildings (TD Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31, 2019 and this note
was paid in full. _ 41,099

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non4nterest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140.210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December
2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). , 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-Interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185.899 178,172
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2019 2018

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 282,720

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 377,110

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage ' note.
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in mgnthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year -
term of the mortgage. 446,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest
mortgage note payable to New Harripshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash pf the borrower determined
by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low Income housing use
restrictions for the 30 yearterm of the mortgage. 237,173 .
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Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA).

2019

50,436

2018

53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender' from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
iricome housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of ■

11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank). 150.000 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs 9,332,609 8,490,421

Unamortized deferred financing costs f18.9431

Less current portion due within one year
9,313,666

227.221

8,490,421
216.438

$ 9.086.445 $8,273,983

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter '

Amount

$  227,221
121,051

115,864
115,596

118,605
8.634.272

Total $ 9.332.609
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NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

$

Amount

78,745

21,677

18,318

1,050

720

120

Total

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COIVIPENSATED BALANCES

At May. 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested In the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners often limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,553,000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources.. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds w/ithin a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31, 2019
and 2018.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

'

2019 2018

Cityside Housing Associates, LP $  (9,500) $  (9,492)
Marlborcugh Homes, LP (11) 8
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12,503) (12,491)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP (1.897) (1.715)
Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP (21) (17)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 222,842 222,846
Westmill Senior Housing, LP 78 90

Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP - .(31.190)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates, LP - (60,716)
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP (260) (243)
Pilot Health, LLC - (18.3741

$  198.728 2_88.706
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SCS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP. Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner in Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is included in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended -May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is
included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.'

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, consists of the following:

2019 2018

Total assets $ 5.745

Total liabilities 2,454 47,461
Capital/Member's equity 3.291 (14.679)

$  5.745 $ 32.782

Income $ 426 $ 84,713

Expenses 661 81.478

Net income (loss) , $ (235) £ 3.235

23



NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRiCTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

2019 2018

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

Stand Down

GAPSA/Varm Fund

Transport
HS Parents Association

EHS

5,973 $

91,908

47,260

6,575

31.200

21,327
4,963

118,401

Total net assets with donor restrictions 182.916

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt income in connection with notes payable to Community Development
Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debt income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

■  During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
.  debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD

and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31, 2018.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. acquired a partnership interest in three low-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019

Date of Transfer

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

Total assets

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

Total liabilities

Partners' capital

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties

Partners' capital transferred

Winchester

08/16/2017

$  24,508
11,467

164,110
990.842

12.328

304,073

22.009

326.082

877,173

(53.8881

S 823.285

Swanzev

06/30/2018

$ 12,856
7.330

119,061
1,330,231

6.436

666,902
87.108

754.010

721,904

31.190

Snow Brook

05/01/2019

$13,374
8,821

178,852
1,211,341

15,776

1.203.255 1.475.914 1.428.164

665,173

140.119

805.292

622,872

60.716

$ 753.094 $683.588
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NOTE 13 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services' financial
of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total financial assets

, Less amounts not available to be used
within one year:

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2019

882,187

1,245,826
59,102

112,000

45,547
849.334

3.193.996

assets as

2018

1,086,895
1,095,486
188,523
112,000
45,547

517.853

3.046.304

(59,102)
(112,000)
(45,547)

(729.486)

(946.135)

$  2.247.861

(188,523)
(112,000)
(45,547)

(444.980)

(791.050)

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that. provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SOimiWgSTgRN COMMUNITY SERVtCES. tWC. AMD RgLATgQ COMPANIES

CONSOUDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, gOia

Education Ecortomic Managemertt

Home Energy and Homeleas Housing Development other Total snd 2019

Proorsms Nutrition Proorsms Services Services Proorsms Proorsm RenersI Total

REVENUES

Government conbscts $ 4.840^7 $ 2.853.470 S  1,607.684 $ 53.036 S  734.568 S 148.424 $ 10243.769 $ 428.933 5 10.672.702
Ptogrem seivfctt (MS 572.421 74.144 997.150 24.700 772.976 2.441.391 /  44.014 2.485.405

Rentd income . . 84.704 909276 - 1.400 995.380 995,380

Oevetoper (m incorns - . . .' • • •

Support 12.751 16,848 123.635 . 168.704 130.453 452.391 - 452.391

SponsorsNp , 2,713 1.104 . - 66214 70.631 262 70.893

.  interest irwame 12 • 2,183 3211 13 21 5.440 1.713 7.153

Forgtvertess of debt . . 59.141 329.708 . - 388.849 - 368.849

MisceBaneous 2.770 10.389 4.844 69.893 25.146 " 113,042 7.655 120.697

In-Mnd contributions . ?41.4<N . . . . 241.499 - ?41 499

Total revenues and other support S S.434Ji41 $ 3.124.919 S  1.957.439 % 2.382.270 S  953.129 $ I.IW.OW S 14.952.392 i 482.577 5 15.434 969

EXPENSES

PoyroB S  432,968 $ 1.224.986 5  377.595 S 775,425 S  414.730 s 432.626 S 3.658.530 s 753.068 5 4.411.598
Psyrol taxes 33.521 97.919 29.527 59.738 33.519 34.195 288.419 '  58.304 346.723

EmptoyM berteflts 106.054 415.890 142.654 289.985 97.771 180.294 1232.648 111.111 1.343.759
Retiremertt 29200 70.406 18.908 61.936 27231 18.181 224.462 71247 296.009
Advertisbig - 500 1.912 4213 618 9.487 18,730 - '  16.730
BenJctfioves - . . 4.444 - 1 4,445 7229 11,774
Bed debt . 10 . 90 . - 100 • 100

Computer cost . 24.540 4.759 3.027 14,926 750 48.002 116.846 164.648

Corttraduel 629.045 32.930 230.964 38.^ 2.719 116.585 1.050.959 39.743 1.090,702
Oepredalfon . 28,300 108.291 2812^ 14207 432.746 147.387 580.115

Duealreglstjetlon - 5277 . 488 866 1212 7.945 11.879 19.824

Oupticatlrsg . 8.852 . . . - 8.852 4,155. 13.007

Insurance 6.714 14.798 23.590 60.672 14.130 7,184 127.068 33,892. .  160.960

Interest . 7.775 8.022 21.956 - 1.610 39.383 164,045 203.406
MMtIno and conference 8.673 813 2.567 8.104 565 22.569 43.291 " 24.957 68.248

MisceBaneotA ej^ertse 181 1.695 637 34.793 3,651 2231 43.888 19.278 63.166

MisceBaneous taxes . . . 34.900 .
. 34.900 389 35289

Equipment purchases 1.292 15274 . 7287 . - 232S3 1.180 25,033
Office expertse 24.820 8.499 6.695 11.475 6.458 807 58.754 11.656 70.410

Postage 97 268 138 53 214 - 770 24238 25.008

Professional fees 4.300 . 1201 36.095 . . 41.696 90.968 132.684

Staff developmerrt and training 2,128 1.580 1.678 72 1204 21.877 29239 10290 39229

Subscriptions . . . 655 354 - .  1.009 399 1.408

Telephone 2.087 2.356 18,479 17217 2236 •  1289 44.684 52,308 96.972
Travel 7.951 16256 15.412 5,183 29231 608 74.941 4.855 79.796

Vehide 2.300 5.225 1,088 37.795 44.426 8268 99,402 13.438 112.838
Rent . 24.800 . ISO . . 24.950 • 24.950

Spece costs . 194.946 •  332,351 512292 1.000 376 1.041.065 106.866 1,147.931
Direct cflent assistance 3.947.152 214.436 •  666284 10,674 23219 21.049 4.865214 ' 4,885214

livkirxf eiqtenses - ■  241.499 . - . - 241.499 241.499

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 5238.483 2.659.S30 1.994.872 2.319.865 721270 894,986 13,829.406 1280.406 15.709212

ADocatlcn of matMgemerB atxl general ejipensea 712284 '  361.681 271248 315.436 98.086 121.693 1280.406 (1280.406) -

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5^.767 $ 3.021.491 $ 2^.118 $ 2.635^1 • $ 819.4S8 $ 1X06.679 S 15.709.812 $_ $ 15.709.912

Sm Independent Auditors' Report
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SQUTHWESTHRN COMMUHTTY SgRVICeS IMC

CONSOUDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

Home Energy
Proorama

REVENUES

Government contracts

Program servtce (ee
Rerital Income

Developer fee income
Support '
Sponsorship
Interest bxsxne

Forgiveness of debt

MIsceSaneows

In-Mrv] contributions

Total revertues

104.617

23

2.010

Education

and

Nutrition

S 4.934.242 S 2.623.698

3S.405

7

126

161.852

Homeless

Pfoarams

(  1.920.112
76.506
117 J70

99.437
80

1.051

59.141

6.485

Housing
Services

47.623

978.904

684.072

50.000

1.362

18330

42.373

Economic

Development

Services

%  756.952

17,915

139340

47.352

Other

Programs

i  166921

704383
200

130330

105306

35

S 5.Q4Q.B92 S 3.021.088 S 2.280.182 j

Total

Program

S 10.649.748
1,868.168
801.642

50.000

509329
105386

2.478

75.971

98.346

161352

i 14,»2.7-W

Management

and General

405.345

6.481

2,428

2018

Total

11.055.093

1.868.188

801.642

50.000
509329

105386
8.959

75.971

100.772
161.852

414352 S 14.736092

EXPENSES

. PeyroB
PayroB taxes
Empioyee bertefits
Rellremertt

Advertising
Bardt Charges
Computer cost
Contractual

Depredation
DuesAegistratiot)
Duplicating
Insurance

Interest

Meeting end conferertce
Miscdtaneous expense
MlsceSaneous laxes

Equipment purchases
Office e]q>ense
Postage
Professionel

Staff development end training
Subscriptions
Telephone
Travel

Vehicle

Rent

Space costs
Direct client assistarKe
ln4drK] eiqienses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATX>N

ABocalion of mattagemern and ger>efal e)per>sea

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

$  398.452 $  1306.631 %  435338 S  771.028 $ 405.189 $  439358 S  3.656.196 S  774.466 S  4.432.682

31.599 99,882 34.153 56303 30.416 36316 289.771 60,913 350.684

122.782 453304 148.394 278.393 87.744 187320 1375317 54.590 1330.107

24.960 69378 21.031 64344 19380 17.448 216321 73.148 289.969
. 142 1.897 4.166 2.114 16.172 24.491 • 24.491

15 . 120 3.834 . • 3.960 0.079 13,048

. 9.185 4300 14.144 14398 3300 45.427 62.052 107.479

518340 52.4» 242335 20362 2.718 109.718 946338 14.921 961.457

. 28.300 108391 167340 . 18.131 320362 147,387 467329

. 6.036 . 343 988 997 8384 10.175 18339

1,584 8.148 . . . - 9.732 4.321 14.053

5.909 13.381 23,653 • 52.287 14.610 8348 118.068 38.380 154.448

8.656 7.759 6.997 . 2354 25.968 118.501 142.467

3.961 58 9383 7.177 600 19305 40,394 35.924 75.318

909 971 2303 18.696 4,442 16360 45,881 13,182 59.063

. 26381 -• . 26,381 988 27367

4.670 24.320 60 12.348 . • 41,418 2.305 43.723

34.413 12,613 8.440 14306 12.042 • 4.076 86.090 20.402 106.492

132 274 182 31 348 SO 1.017 22.918 23.935

4.890 . 1.87S 15379 . -
22.644 83.766 106.410

1.430 23.724 2.624 8387 5.675 28,044 69.784 2343 72.727

28 87 . 115 1.329 1.444

2.088 15397 19.681 14369 2.435 3339 57307 56376 113383

5.335 20.013 20.312 . 5.195 29.509 2300 82364 3.509 85373

2.140 2.510 712 31.826 45300 9301 91.569 10.981 102.570

. 25.201 . . . - 25301 • 25.201

148 140313 256.649 438.344 - 1.009 836.563 128.986 965.529

3,683,466 145.220 823.938 14.447 50.531 23343 4.741.445 4.741.445

161.852- .
- 161.852 • 161.852

4347301 2330.152 2,172388 2.048314 728.119 945391 13371.465 1.749.700 15321.165

639.051 333374 • 288.406 270335 95.995 124339 1.749.700 f1.749.7001 .

S 5.486352 S 2.863.726 S 2.458.794 $ 2318349 $ 824.114 S  1.070330 S 15.021.165 S $ 15.021.165

See Independent Auditors' Report
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aotrnwESTEHM COMMUNITY ggmncps IHC. *wa RPtATFP CQMfAWlPa

SCKEOULB OF EXPENOfTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR EWDED M*y SI. Kii

- ■ FEDERAL GRANTORJ

PASS-THROUBM CRAWTQWPROGRAW TTTLB

U.g. P«i>trtm«»rt ot Aarieulturi

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

PASS-THROUOH-
ORAHTQR-8 NAME ORAHTOR-S NUMBER

FEDERAL

CXPENOITURE

Runl Houtlng PrMsvaUon Gnnt 10.433 Dfracl Funding 34034)2001-800 s 22.675
Spodil SupelofflOflW NuMlbn Prognm for
Wcnxn, IMMa, and CNIdcwi{WIC) tO.U7 StalaofNHDapi. olHaaBhSHumanSarrlcat OtOOe042eOOOOO-tO2-9OO734 347,517

ChH and AduB Cm Food Progtvn losse Stala of NH. Dapl of Eduodbn Unknown 131.208
Food Dlit/ibutlon ChioUr

Cenmodtir 8i«pliRwnU Feed Pregran tosss Sida of NH DapL of HoaBA » Hwnan Sandoaa 01046042000000-102-000734 S  2.003
Emenency Food AwWic i Preg^ (Admin) 1OS08 Comnurtty Action Program BaBmtpAlanltrtack Ceurtiaa Urftnown 1.444
Ewetgenc)' Pood Awlilaii. i PiOBtera (Feed OBrnmcdUtoe) 10.5W Crjimturdy Action Pni^am Baftnap Mantrrrairt; Courdaa Unkrvan 80.040 63 373

TeUI U.S. Deparlmert of Agrieulturo f 595 4U

11«. DeAtrtmenl of HmteliMi eiMl Urfeen Drrelnnmtnl

Emergency Soludone Orm Pregrem 14S31 Start ol NH. D1*tS. Btraauef Homdaaat Houdng 05-6540-650310-717000000-102-50731 S  105,402
Bmeigoney SokjOone Orard Pregrem 14.231 Sim el NH. DfttS, Ofllea of Hurrwi Sarvtcaa 01044^7e^T•t02•0731 62.366 5 247,681

SupgerUvo htoiahg Pregtam 14S» Stda of NH, 0HH9, Btntu of HomdaM 0 Houdng 00-6545430310717000000-10240731 217.705
SMbrPbaCoro 14.23S Stala oINH, OhHS, Buraauof Homilaaa& Houdng 05-06-65-85031071700000010240731 281.455
CondnuiRi of Ctra Ptogcam , 14Se7 Start of NK OhHS. Btaaau of Homotoaa & Heuatng 05-05-05450310717500000102-50731 153 421

TeU U.S. Daparlmant of Hoialng and Urban Devefeprnenl f 800 46?

(l.a. Denertment of Labor

W10A Cluater

WIAAddlPiagran 17SS8 Southern NH Sarvleoa Unknown 6  42SSS
WtA OWoeabd Wecter Fon^ Orarda 17S79 Southern NH Sarvtoaa Unlowm 34S16 1 ■ 70 501

ToW U.a Oaparlmatd of LatniAVtA Cludar t 70.804

U.a. Oaoadmenf of Treneoortaflon Fedanf TrarwR AdmlTrlatraflon tFTAl

Fonada Orwta lor Run( Araaa 20soe Stala of NH. Dopdtmart of Tranaportallon 0440404040102910 t 247,667
TraiMtt tarvleaa Prograttw ClutMr
ErMiew] MobBlty of Sardora M IndMduata ««n OaabUlaa 20S13 Slate of NH. Dapartmart of TranaportaBon 0440464640102010 20.356

Total U.S. Dapartmani of TranaperlMlen Fadard Tranall AdmlnMrdlon (FTA) f 274.320

II R nanartmani of Valarana Affalri

VA SvportNa Sarvkaa lor Vataran Fanillaa PtDgmn 04.033 Harbor Homaa. Irv. Unknown ♦ 67.476

Tetd U.S. OagaiOttanl of Vatardna Aflaira 1 67.476

It R. Oaoartmarn of Fnarmr

WaadraetaUorrAaaldarKi tor Lew Incoma Paraena SI.OU Startof NH. Ofllea of Erwrgy A Planning O1-O2-424O1077O0474-6OC6S7 1 116.154

ToWU.8. Dagartmard of Enargy 1 116.154

II R. nanartmeMofHaanh R Human Rarvleaa

AgbrgChialar
Special Pngrarha lor the Aging.' Tklo ni. Part B.
OranU for Swpoiilva Sarvteaa and Sartor Canlara 03.0M Stala of NH. Offleo of Energy A Planning 01-024240107700074400057 S  6,324

Spadal Progranta for (ha l^ng, TVia Bl. Part B,
Onnia for Swortlva Sarvlcao and Sartor Cartari 63.044 Starter NH. DHHS, Burtau of EMariy A Adiit SandcM 00-66-404510107672 37 6» S 43SS3

Orartt lo Stataa to Support Oral HafBh WerUoreo AetMtlaa '83.230 Stda of NH. OHKS, Olvidon of PamOy AnWanoa Unknown 13,476
DrugFraa Conanurdtlaa Support Pio(pam Oianta 63.270 Olrael Fundrtg SH79SP01te774e 137,670
AflordaUa Cara'Act (ACA) - Contumat Aaditanca Pro^am Gtsda 83.019 ORadFurdng HCeCfCFI 6.148
TAWCIuatar

Taoportoy Aartatanea lor Naady FarrtDat 63SS0 SouOiam NH Sarvtcaa Unknown 260S34
Low IneetM Homa Enafgy Aartdanea (Fual Aartdanea) esset Start of NH Ofllea of Energy A Prtradrg 0142-02-62401077060000400607 4S03,C6e

Low toeoma Homa Enatgy Aadalanea (fffUtP) 63.500 Start olfSl Ofllea of Energy A Ptanrdng O1-a2-O3-(B4O1077O6OOO04OO607 165S82
(.our kiooma ttoraa Entfgy Anidanea (BWP) e3S08 Start of l«i OOca of Enatgy A Ptonrdig OI-a242-a24O1077O6OOO04OOSO7 216R71 4,087.172

ComnutSy Satvfeaa Block Orart 63.506 Start oINKOHHS. Obr.olFamlyAaaWattea 000731 406.583
Comnunty Sarvlcaa Bbck Orwd • OfaenOanary 63.570 State of NH. DHHS. Dto. el FamBy Aaddanci 22.300
HaadStdt 63.000 nrad Fundbtg otcHoose Z328.280
Madkald Cluatar

liladted Aadatanca Proyarrr 63.770 Stda of NK DHHS, Oniea of Hunan Strtlcaa OO-63-47-(7O(n092CnOOOO 1Z271

Totd U.S. Oapartmart oC Madth S Human Sarvtcaa f 7.667.603

II.R. Oanirlmanl of Homalarrd Raemttr

Emargahey Feed and Shaltar Natlond Beard Program 07.024 Stda of NH, I^HHS. Offloa of Human Sarvtcaa Unkivwn t 2060

Told US. Dapartmart of Homdard Saeuty * zoeo

TOTAL • t 10.016.520

Sm NMm to telMdul* of Eipondlturto of Fodoral Awirdt
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SOUTHWESTERN COIVIIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

N0TE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Corhmunity Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance Is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTES SUBRECIPIENTS

,  Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated Novembers, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (intemal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s Internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there'is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement'of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to, merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance arid the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Novembers, 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies' compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May
31, 2019. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responslbilitv
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requiremerits for Federal Awards
(Uniforrh Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types.of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal - program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each IVIaior Federal Program
In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services. Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal. control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based , on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared in accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal-Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for. Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services: Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, .93.568, and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas. 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000..

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COIVIIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIFS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2018.
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1  Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Composition - 2019 -\

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT

SECTOR

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

Brianna Trombi

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf
Alstead Friendly Meals

PRIVATE

SECTOR

Elaine Amer, Clerk/Treasurer

Amer Electric Company (retired)

Kevin Watterson, Chair
Clarke Companies (retired)

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organization

PUBLIC

SECTOR

Jay Kahn
State Senator, Dislricl 10

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

David Edkins

Walpole, NH

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager



CRAIG A. HENDERSON

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS
ProficieDt In: Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Internet, Outlook, Photoshop,
Ability to prioritize in a fast paced environment and to learn new tasks quickly and efTectlvely
Dedicated, reliable and responsible
Extensive background in Social Services, Property Management, Finance, and Customer Service

EDUCATION

Psychology with a specialization In counseling May, 1999
B.S Business Management

Kccne State College
Keene, NH 03435

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Henderson & Bosley Property Management 8/02-PrcscDt

Keene, NH

•  Adhering to NH Slate housing laws and government housing programs
•  Advertising and marketing of vacant apartments. Creating leases. Performing credit checks
•  Property inspections and maintenance- including basic carpenhy, landscaping etc.
•  Research and management of investment opportunities

Southwestern Community Services 10/07-Present
Director of Housing Stabilization Services
•  Designs and implements systems to provide efficient operation of all Housing Stabilization

programs. ®
• Manages and leads assigned staff to ensure SCS policies and procedures are followed In a manner

consistent with tiie.organization's mission, values, and culture.
•  of new employees and oversees the orientation and training of all assigned

• Maint^n compliance with State/Government/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services IO/07-Prcsent
Assistant Director of Housing Stabilization Services Keene, NH

• Monitor quality of services, operation of assigned progi ams, facilities, and staff.
•  Process and certify tenant/client applications for all Supportive Housing Programs; facilitate move-

in process-track and collect rents/subsidies utilizing Classic Real Estate Software; track and collect
all match documentation; recertify tenants when necessary and in a timely manner.

• Maintain compliance with Staie/Govemment/Agehcy protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services 02/03-10/07
Long Term Transitional Housing Program Administrator Keene, NH

•  Responsibilities include: Assisting the homeless of Cheshire County with budgeting and referrals to
other needed services; Advocating on behalf of clients to create new networks and improve current
relationships; providing counsel through tougli transitions, as well as, creating and maintaining an
environment of success througli programs such as Mediation Training, Consumer Credit
Counseling, Psychological Therapy, Parenting Classes, and First Time Homebuyers programs.

•  Basic maintenance of shelter properties and ihvenioi-y control

•  Responsible to track data and create statistical reports based on information collected to assist in
budget allocations for Southwestern Community Services

Coldwell Banker / Tattcrsall 1/02-3/04
Real Estate Sales Associate Keene, NH

•  Assisting buyers and sellers of real estate through'customer/client interaction
•  Informing clients/customers of federal and state regulations, financing options, and negotiating
•  Creating marketing plans and researching pricing through competitive market analysis



vision Appraisal lecnnoiogy 3/oz-i/uj

Data CoUector . . . Keene, NH

• Assured accurate and*consistent real-estate assessrnerits with the erfjpfiasis In field work
•  Position required strong attention to detail with tlie emphasis in property measurement and

appraisal as well as requiring strong customer skill by acting as a liaison between town assessors
office and the property owner

Monadnet 8/99-8/01
Customer Service Supen'isor Keene, NH

• Responsibilities include maintaining all major accounts and new account data; managing projects
and delegating responsibilities, A/R and A/P reconciliation, Collections of delinquent accounts.

•  Financial Analysis and Trend Monitoring, Billing Systems-Analyst
•  Direct mediation and resolution of customer service issues.

AWARDS RECEIVED

•  Delta Mu Delta: National Business Honor Society
•  Psi Chi: National Psychology Honor Society

CONTINUTNG EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

04/18/2007 Certified Occupancy Specialist - National Center for Housing Management

09/23/2008 Successful completion of "Landlord and Tenant Law" seminar — Lorman Educational Services

02/23/2016 HUD Certified Housing Quality Standards Inspector

01/21/2016 Completed 8.5 hours of Nonviolent Crisis lntcr\'ention training

04/26/2013 Certification In Fair Housing Law - Granite State Managers Association

08/10/2016 Blood Borne Pathogen Training

08/24/2016 6 hours of comprehensive low income housing tax credit training - Johnson Consulting Serv ices, Inc



Margaret Freeman

Experience

2000-Present

Southwestern Community Services Inc.
Keene, NH

. Chief Financicil Officer (2014- present)
Supervising the quality of accounting and financial reporting of SCS; a Community "
Action Agency. Total funding of $18 million; federal, state and local funding sources.
Primary responsibilities include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation
and monitoring of internal controls, reporting financial position to the Board of
Directors, preparation of the annual A-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014)
Responsible to lead and manage the daily operations of the Fiscal Department of SCS.
Primary duties include budget preparation and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993-2000

Emile J. Legere Management Corp
Keene, NH

Accountant

Provided bookkeeping for real estate management/development corp. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger, A/P,
A/R, financial.statement prep, and audit prep. Leasing Manager of large
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces.

Education

Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State Uniyersity, Plymouth, NH
M.B.A., 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH

B.S., Management, 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science



John A. Manning

Summary Over 30 years of experience with non-profit organizations, as both an
outside auditor and presently Chief Executive Officer of a large
community action agency.

Experience 2014-Present Southwestern Community Services inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Executive Officer

Has overall strategic and operational responsibility for a community action
agency providing services to low and moderate income individuals.
Programs include Head Start. Fuel Assistance, and multiple affordable
housing projects. Responsibilities Include maintaining ongoing excellence,
rigorous program evaluation and consistent quality of finance, administration,
fundraising, communications and systems; Works with the Board of Directors
and management team to implement the objectives of SCS's strategic plan.
Actively engages and energizes volunteers, board members, event
committees, partnering organizations and funders. Develops and maintains
strong relationships with the BoarS of Directors and serve as ex-officio
member of the Board. Leads, coaches, develops and retains a high-
performance management team. Ensures effective systems are in place to
measure work performance, provide regular feedback to funding sources
and community partners.

1990-2014 Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Financial Officer

Oversees ail fiscal functions Supervises a staff of 7, with an agency
budget of over $ 13,000,000. Also oversees agency property
management department, which manages over 300 units of affordable
housing.

1985-1995 Keene State College Keene, NH

Adjunct Professor

Taught evening accounting classes for their continuing education
program.

1976-1990 John A. Manning, Keene. NH

Certified Public Accountant

Provided public accounting services to small and medium sized clients,
including multiple non-profit organizations. Perfonned certified audits on
several clients, Including Head Start and other non-profit clients



1975-1978 Kostin and Co. CPA's West Hartford, Ct.

Staff Accountant

Performed all aspects of public accounting for medium sized accounting
firm. Audited large number of privately held and non-profit clients.

Education 1971-1975 University of Mass.

• B.S. Business Administration in Accounting

Organizations American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

NH Society of Certified Public Accountants

Amherst, Ma.



Contractor Name; Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Decompression Contrnpt

Key Personnel

1
Name Job Title Salary % ?aid from

this Contract
Amount Paid from

this Contract
John Manning CEO $132,080 0 0
Meg Freeman CFO $90,854 0 0
Craig Henderson Director of Housing

Stabilization
$50,003 0 0


